UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA ATLANTA DIVISION

MATTHEW CHARRON, on behalf of himself and those similarly situated,

Plaintiff,

CASE NO.:

vs.

NATIONAL PARKING SOLUTIONS, LLC D/B/A NATIONAL PARKING SOLUTIONS – SOUTH, LLC, a Domestic Limited Liability Company, and MARC EBERSOLE, Individually,

Defendants. /

COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT & JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff, MATTHEW CHARRON ("Plaintiff"), on behalf of himself and those similarly situated, sues the Defendants, NATIONAL PARKING SOLUTIONS, LLC D/B/A NATIONAL PARKING SOLUTIONS – SOUTH, LLC, a Domestic Limited Liability Company, and MARC EBERSOLE, individually (hereinafter "Defendants"), for failing to pay minimum wages and overtime to all valet attendants (hereinafter "valet attendants" or "class members") who worked for Defendants within the last three years, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 201, et al. (hereinafter the "FLSA").

Nature of Case

1. This is an action by the Plaintiff against his former employer for failing to pay him minimum wages and unpaid overtime wages, pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA") as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) (the "FLSA").

2. Defendants violated the FLSA by failing to pay class members that were employed in Georgia at any time within the past three (3) years (2014-2017) overtime premiums for all hours worked over forty pursuant to the FLSA.

3. In addition, Defendants violated the FLSA by failing to properly pay class members that were employed by Defendants within the past three (3) years (2014-2017) proper minimum wages pursuant to FLSA.

4. Additionally, Plaintiffs seek a declaration of rights pursuant to Rule 57, Fed.R.Civ.P., and the Federal Declaratory Judgment Act ("DJA"), 28 U.S.C. § 2201.

Jurisdiction & Venue

5. This Court has jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1331 and the FLSA, the authority to grant declaratory relief under the FLSA pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §2201 et seq.

6. This Court has jurisdiction and venue over this complaint as each of Defendants' violations of the FLSA complained of took place in Fulton County, Georgia.

Parties

7. Plaintiff and class members were valet attendants who worked for Defendants within the last three (3) years.

8. Plaintiff, MATTHEW CHARRON, worked for Defendants as a valet attendant from April 16, 2011 through April 12, 2017 at various sites in Fulton County, Georgia.

9. The proposed class members worked for Defendants at various sites in Georgia as valet attendants.

10. Plaintiff and the proposed class members were subjected to similar violations of the FLSA. The class of similarly situated employees or potential class members sought to be certified under 29 U.S.C. §216(b) is defined as:

All valet attendants who worked for Defendants within the three (3) years preceding this lawsuit.

The precise size and the identity of the FLSA Class should be ascertainable from the business records, tax records, and/or employee or personnel records of Defendants and its related and affiliated entities.

11. Defendants' principal business where the issues which are the subject matter complained of took place is located in Fulton County, Georgia, and is therefore within the jurisdiction of this Court.

12. Defendant, NATIONAL PARKING SOLUTIONS, LLC D/B/A NATIONAL PARKING SOLUTIONS – SOUTH, LLC, is a full service valet parking and parking management company specializing in high-service parking programs for over thirty (30) years.

13. Defendant, MARC EBERSOLE, is/was an acting owner of Defendant, NATIONAL PARKING SOLUTIONS, LLC D/B/A NATIONAL PARKING SOLUTIONS – SOUTH, LLC, and an individual resident of the state of Georgia who, upon information and belief, resides in Fulton County, Georgia. MARC EBERSOLE had authority to hire and fire valets, set pay rates, schedule valets, and is/was responsible for its minimum wage and overtime policies.

General Factual Allegations

14. Plaintiff worked as a valet attendant for Defendants.

15. Plaintiff worked for Defendants as a valet attendant from approximately April 16, 2011 to April 12, 2017.

16. Defendants attempted to pay its valet attendants pursuant to a "tip credit" method.

17. Defendants did not pay Plaintiff at least the full minimum wage in exchange for work performed as a valet attendant.

18. Defendants do not pay Plaintiff an hourly wage.

19. Defendant did not pay Plaintiff at least the full minimum wage in exchange for worked performed as a valet attendant.

20. Plaintiff and all similarly situated employees performed a specific job, i.e. park and return customers' cars, which was/is an integral part of the valet business of Defendants.

21. Defendants failed to pay the Plaintiff and the class members the applicable minimum wage rate.

22. In addition, Defendants required Plaintiff and the class members to share tips received each shift with members of management invalidating the applicability of any tip credit or tip-sharing provisions.

23. A tip pool can only contain employees who customarily and regularly receive tips.

24. Further, if tipped employees are required to participate in a tip pool with other employees who do not customarily receive tips, then the tip pool is invalid and the employer is not permitted to take a tip credit.

25. Notwithstanding minimum wage requirements or these tip-credit and

tip sharing requirements, Defendants required their valet drivers to participate in a tip pool contribution plan that includes non-traditionally tipped employees.

26. For example, while working at Defendants' various locations, valet attendants were required to pay management a share per shift from their tips.

27. For these reasons, Defendants violated the terms of the tip-credit provision on minimum wages should it contend that the valet attendants were being paid pursuant thereto.

28. In addition, many times valets do not earn enough in tips to earn at least minimum wages per week.

29. As a result of these common policies, Plaintiff and each similarly situated valet is entitled to receive the applicable minimum wage rate for each hour worked.

30. The additional persons who may become plaintiffs in this action are employees who held positions similarly situated to Plaintiff and who suffered from the same pay practice of being improperly paid less than any form of minimum wage.

31. Upon information and belief, the records, to the extent any exist, concerning the number of hours worked and amounts paid to Plaintiff and other similarly situated valets are in the possession and custody of Defendants.

32. Plaintiff and the other valets frequently worked more than forty (40) hours in a workweek.

33. Despite working more than forty (40) hours per week, Defendants failed to pay Plaintiffs overtime compensation at a rate of no less than time and one half their regular rate of pay for the hours worked over forty in a workweek.

34. During their employment, one or more of the Plaintiffs complained about the illegal practices described above to management, but it took no action to stop the illegal practices.

35. The additional persons who may become plaintiffs in this action are employees who held positions similarly situated to Plaintiff and who suffered from the same pay practice of being improperly paid the tipped minimum wage instead of the non-tipped minimum wage rate, and overtime.

36. Upon information and belief, the records, to the extent any exist, concerning the number of hours worked and amounts paid to Plaintiff and other similarly situated valet attendants are in the possession and custody of Defendants.

COVERAGE

37. At all material times during the last three years (2014-2017), Defendant, NATIONAL PARKING SOLUTIONS, LLC D/B/A NATIONAL

PARKING SOLUTIONS – SOUTH, LLC, was an enterprise subject to the FLSA provision on minimum wages.

38. At all material times during the last three years (2014-2017), Defendant, NATIONAL PARKING SOLUTIONS, LLC D/B/A NATIONAL PARKING SOLUTIONS – SOUTH, LLC, was an enterprise engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce, in that said enterprise has had at least two employees engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce, or employees handling, selling, or otherwise working on goods or materials that have been moved in or produced for commerce by any person.

39. Defendants' employees handled such goods as valet tickets, cash registers, receipt tape, paper, pens, etc. which had travelled in commerce on a daily basis during the last three years (2014-2017).

40. At all material times during the last three years (2014-2017), Defendants have had an annual gross volume of sales made or business done of not less than five hundred thousand and 0/100 dollars (\$500,000.00) (exclusive of excise taxes at the retail level which are separately stated).

Collective Factual Allegations

41. Class members are treated equally by Defendant.

42. Defendants subjected class members to the same illegal practice and policy by failing to pay its hourly paid employees proper minimum wage and overtime premiums.

43. Defendants pay class members in the same manner.

44. Plaintiff and all class members worked in the State of Georgia.

45. Plaintiff and all class members in the State of Georgia were not guaranteed at least the full minimum wage for all hours worked.

46. Plaintiff and all class members were improperly paid the tipped minimum wage per hour.

47. Plaintiff and the class members were not paid an hourly wage.

48. Plaintiff and the class members were only paid in tips.

49. Plaintiff and the class members frequently worked more than forty(40) hours per week.

50. Plaintiff and the class members were not paid time and one half of at least \$7.25 per hour for their overtime hours.

51. Plaintiff and the class members were required to share tips with management.

52. Defendant failed to keep accurate time and pay records for Plaintiff and all class members pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 211(c).

53. Defendant's failure to keep accurate time and pay records casts the burden on Defendant to disprove the testimony of Plaintiff and all class members regarding the illegal deductions which they were required to pay.

54. Plaintiffs have hired the undersigned law firms to represent them in this matter and are obligated to pay them reasonable fees and costs if they prevail.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION <u>VIOLATION OF THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT, 29 U.S.C.</u> <u>§216(b)</u> <u>(Unpaid Minimum Wages)</u>

55. Plaintiff re-alleges and reincorporates all allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 - 54 as if incorporated herein.

56. Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and the class members full and proper minimum wage.

57. Defendants' failure to pay Plaintiff and other valet attendants the full minimum wage is a violation of 29 U.S.C. § 206.

58. The foregoing conduct, as alleged, constitutes a willful violation of the FLSA within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 255(a).

59. Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION <u>VIOLATION OF THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT, 29 U.S.C. §216(b)</u> <u>(Unpaid Overtime Wages)</u>

60. Plaintiff re-incorporates and re-adopts all allegations contained withinParagraphs 1 - 54 above as though fully stated herein.

61. Plaintiff and class members are entitled to be paid time and one-half their regular rate of pay for each hour worked in excess of forty (40) per work week.

62. During their employment with Defendants, Plaintiff and the hourly paid employees regularly worked overtime hours but was not paid time and one half compensation for the same.

63. As a result of Defendants' intentional, willful, and unlawful acts in refusing to pay Plaintiff and the class members time and one half their regular rate of pay for each hour worked in excess of forty (40) per work week in one or more work weeks, Plaintiff has suffered damages.

64. Defendants did not maintain and keep accurate time records regarding the overtime hours as required by the FLSA.

65. Also, Defendants failed to post required FLSA informational listings as required by law.

66. As a result of Defendants' willful violation of the FLSA, Plaintiff and the class members are entitled to liquidated damages.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION DECLARATORY RELIEF

67. Plaintiff reincorporates and readopts all allegations contained within Paragraphs 1 - 54 above as though fully stated herein.

68. Plaintiff and Defendants have a pending dispute under the Fair Labor Standards Act, which the Court has jurisdiction to hear pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §

1331.

69. The Court also has jurisdiction to hear Plaintiff's request for

declaratory relief pursuant to the Declaratory Judgment Act. 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201-

2202.

70. Plaintiff may obtain declaratory relief.

71. Defendants employed Plaintiff and those similarly situated employees as valet attendants.

72. Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and the valet attendants full minimum wage.

73. Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and the valet attendants an hourly wage.

74. Defendants took improper deductions from Plaintiff and the valet

attendants' tips.

75. Defendants failed to keep accurate time and pay records for Plaintiff and all class members pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 211(c) and 29 C.F.R. Part 516.

76. Plaintiff is entitled to the full minimum wage pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §206.

77. Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff and its valet attendants proper overtime wages.

78. Plaintiff and the class members are entitled to an equal amount of liquidated damages.

79. It is in the public interest to have these declarations of rights recorded as Defendants still employs hourly paid employees subject to the same policies at issue.

80. Plaintiff's declaratory judgment action serves the useful purpose of clarifying and settling the legal relations in issue.

81. The declaratory judgment action terminates and affords relief from uncertainty, insecurity, and controversy giving rise to the proceeding.

82. Plaintiff demands a trial by jury.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, MATTHEW CHARRON, on behalf of himself and those similarly situated employees, demands a declaration of rights

finding all of the above allegations raised in this count to be true.

83. Plaintiff also demands a trial by jury.

Respectfully submitted this 5^{th} day of June, 2017.

s/CARLOS V. LEACH

Carlos V. Leach, Esq. Georgia Bar No. 488443 MORGAN & MORGAN, P.A. 191 Peachtree Street NE, P.O. Box 57007 Atlanta, GA 30303 Telephone: (404) 965-8811 Facsimile: (404) 965-8812 Email: cleach@forthepeople.com

JS 44 (Rev. 08/16)

Case 1:17-cv-02047-ODE Document 1-1 Filed 06/05/17 Page 1 of 1

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. *(SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)*

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS Matthew Charron				DEFENDANTS National Parking Solutions, LLC d/b/a National Parking Solutions - South, LLC and Marc Ebersole		
(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff Fulton (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)				County of Residence of First Listed Defendant <u>Fulton</u> (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY) NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.		
(c) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) Carlos V. Leach, Esq.; MORGAN & MORGAN, P.A.; 191 Peachtre Street, N.E., Suite 4200, P.O. Box 57007, Atlanta, GA 30343-1007 (404) 965-8811; Fax: (404) 965-8812; Email: CLeach@forthepeop				Attorneys (If Known)		
II. BASIS OF JURISDI	CTION (Place an "X" in C	One Box Only)	III. CI	TIZENSHIP OF F	PRINCIPAL PARTIES	(Place an "X" in One Box for Plaintiff
□ 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff	★ 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party)				TF DEF D 1 □ 1 Incorporated or Pr of Business In T	
2 U.S. Government Defendant	□ 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)		Citize	en of Another State	2 2 Incorporated and F of Business In A	
				en or Subject of a reign Country	3 3 Foreign Nation	
IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an "X" in One Box Only)			EA		Click here for: <u>Nature of Su</u>	
CONTRACT 110 Insurance 120 Marine 130 Miller Act 140 Negotiable Instrument 150 Recovery of Overpayment & Enforcement of Judgment 151 Medicare Act 152 Recovery of Defaulted Student Loans (Excludes Veterans) 153 Recovery of Overpayment of Veteran's Benefits 160 Stockholders' Suits 190 Other Contract 195 Contract Product Liability 196 Franchise REAL PROPERTY 210 Land Condemnation 220 Foreclosure 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 240 Torts to Land 245 Tort Product Liability 290 All Other Real Property	TC PERSONAL INJURY 310 Airplane 315 Airplane Product Liability 320 Assault, Libel & Slander 330 Federal Employers' Liability 340 Marine 345 Marine Product Liability 350 Motor Vehicle 355 Motor Vehicle Product Liability 360 Other Personal Injury 362 Personal Injury - Medical Malpractice CIVIL RIGHTS 440 Other Civil Rights 441 Voting 442 Employment 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - Employment 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - Other 448 Education	PERSONAL INJUR 365 Personal Injury - Product Liability 367 Health Carc/ Pharmaceutical Personal Injury Product Liability 368 Asbestos Personal Injury Product Liability 368 Asbestos Personal Injury Product Liability PERSONAL PROPER 370 Other Fraud 371 Truth in Lending 380 Other Personal Property Damage 385 Property Damage Product Liability PRISONER PETITION Habcas Corpus: 463 Alien Detainee 510 Motions to Vacator Sentence 530 General 535 Death Penalty Other: 540 Mandamus & Oth 550 Civil Rights 555 Prison Condition 560 Civil Detainee - Conditions of Conditions of	Y □ 62 0 69 2 71 □ 72 □ 74 □ 75 NS □ 79 2 □ 46	DRFEITURE/PENALTY 5 Drug Related Seizure of Property 21 USC 881 0 Other USC 881 0 Other 0 Fair Labor Standards Act 0 Labor/Management Relations 0 Railway Labor Act 1 Family and Medical Leave Act 0 Other Labor Litigation 1 Employee Retirement Income Security Act IMMIGRATION 2 Naturalization Application 5 Other Immigration Actions	BANKRUPTCY □ 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 □ 423 Withdrawal 28 USC 157 PROPERTY RIGHTS 820 Copyrights □ 820 Copyrights □ 820 Copyrights □ 840 Trademark SOCIAL SECURITY □ 861 HIA (1395ff) □ 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) □ 864 SSID Title XVI □ 865 RSI (405(g)) FEDERAL TAX SUITS □ 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff or Defendant) □ 871 IRS—Third Party 26 USC 7609	OTHER STATUTES 375 False Claims Act 376 Qui Tam (31 USC 3729(a)) 400 State Reapportionment 410 Antitrust 430 Banks and Banking 450 Commerce 460 Deportation 470 Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations 480 Consumer Credit 490 Cable/Sat TV 850 Securities/Commodities/ Exchange 890 Other Statutory Actions 891 Agricultural Acts 895 Freedom of Information Act 896 Arbitration 899 Administrative Procedure Act/Review or Appeal of Agency Decision 950 Constitutionality of State Statutes
		Remanded from a Appellate Court	□ 4 Rein Reop	bened Anoth	er District Litigation	1 - Litigation -
VI. CAUSE OF ACTIO	DN 29 U.S.C. Section Brief description of ca	n 216(b).		(specif) Do not cite jurisdictional sta		Direct File
VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT:Image: Complex comple			DEMAND SCHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:JURY DEMAND:X YesNo			
VIII. RELATED CASI IF ANY	E(S) (See instructions):			DOCKET NUMBER		
DATE June 5, 2017 FOR OFFICE USE ONLY		signature of attorney of record /s/ Carlos V. Leach, Esq.				
	AOUNT	APPLYING IFP		JUDGE	MAG. JUI	DGE

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this post: <u>Valet Claims National Parking Solutions Owes Unpaid Wages</u>